
 
 
9901 Brodie Lane 160-303 
Austin, Texas 78748 

 

BOE Consulting Services, LLC | Traffic Summary Letter 

 June 11, 2020 
 

Attention: Ms. Nazlie Saeedi, P.E 
Transportation Development Engineer – Lead (Central) 
Transportation Development Services Division  
Austin Transportation Department 
901 S. MoPac Expressway, Building 5, Suite 300 
Austin, Texas 78746 

 
Reference: Traffic Summary Letter 

SP-2019-0575C – Tuscany Park Tract 3 
SP-2019-0576C – Tuscany Park Tract 4 

 
Dear Ms. Saeedi: 
 
This letter provides a summary of the originally approved Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) that was performed in 
association with zoning case C14-00-2019 for the property located along Ferguson Lane at Tuscany Way in 
Austin, Travis County, Texas.  This letter is intended to provide information for two (2) separate site development 
permit applications which are both located within the boundaries of the zoning case and ultimately bound by 
the TIA that was approved with said zoning case. SP-2019-0575C (Tuscany Park Tact 3) and SP-2019-0576C 
(Tuscany Park Tract 4).  The site location for each application is shown in Figure 1.   

Figure 1 Site Location 
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ORIGINALLY APPROVED TIA  

The originally approved TIA associated with zoning case C14-00-2019 performed by Alliance Transportation 
Group dated April 2000 limited any development within the zoning ordinance boundaries to 5,874 Daily Trips.  
The zoning ordinance along with a map detailing the zoning boundaries is included as Exhibit 1 to this letter.  
The TIA Approval Memorandum has also been included as Exhibit 2 for your reference. 

The original TIA assumed the land uses and densities with associated trip generation as summarized in Table 1 
below. Please note that the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual was utilized to 
create the table below.  

Table 1 – Summary of Unadjusted Trip Generation (Originally Approved TIA) 

ITE Land Use Size 

24-Hour 
Daily 

Volume 

AM Peak 
Hour 

PM Peak 
Hour 

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total 
Light Industrial Uses 100 acres 5,874 702 145 847 181 642 823 

Total Approved Trips 5,874 702 145 847 181 642 823 

With the completion and approval of the TIA, mitigation measures and fiscal responsibilities were identified to 
be required as part of the approval of the first Site Plan Application to be submitted anywhere within the zoning 
boundaries per the requirements of the zoning ordinance.  The mitigation measures are summarized in the TIA 
Approval Memo attached to this letter as Exhibit 2 and Table 2 provides a summary of the Pro-Rata Costs and 
total fiscal responsibility.  

Table 2 – Summary of Mitigation Measures (Originally Approved TIA) 

Intersection Improvements 
Pro-Rata 

Share 
Applicant's Mitigation 

Responsibility 
Ferguson Lane and Sprinkle Road Traffic Signal 13.3%  $                    16,013.05  

Ferguson Lane and Springdale Road 
EB Right-Turn Decel Lane 4.3%  $                         410.12  

Traffic Signal 4.3%  $                      5,160.00  

Grand Total  $               21,583.17  
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PREVIOUSLY APPROVE SITE PLANS 

Since the approval of the zoning ordinance and TIA, one (1) Site Development Permit (SDP) application has been 
submitted and approved by the City of Austin for construction within the zoning boundaries. It should be noted 
that the TIA Determination Worksheet was not complete nor did it match what was ultimately approved on the 
SDP.  The TIA Determination for SP-2018-0603C reflected 55,000 of Office/Warehouse; however, the ITE Code 
nor associated trips were identified. The Site Plan sheet from the overall SDP set, Sheet 9, shows the Office land 
use at 45,000 square feet and the Warehouse land use at 32,500 square feet for a total of 77,500 square feet of 
gross building area. The TIA Determination and Site Plan sheet have been included as Exhibit 3 to this letter. 
Table 3 provides a summary of the previously approved trip generation.  

Table 3 – Summary of Unadjusted Trip Generation (Previously Approved Site Plan) 

ITE 
Code ITE Land Use Size 

24-Hour 
Daily 

Volume 

AM Peak 
Hour 

PM Peak 
Hour 

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total 
One Gas Service Center (SP-2018-0603C) 

150 Warehousing 32,500 s.f. 97 4 1 6 2 5 6 

710 General Office 45,000 s.f. 489 58 10 69 9 45 53 

Total Previously Approved Site Plan 77,500 s.f. 586 62 11 74 10 49 59 

The One Gas Service Center (SP-2018-0603C), which is currently under construction, was considered the first 
application for development within the zoning boundaries; therefore, per the requirements of the zoning 
ordinance, required to post the necessary Mitigation Responsibility per in Table 3 in this letter. The invoice from 
the Austin Transportation Department as well as the receipt showing proof of payment has been included as 
Exhibit 4 to this letter; therefore, the mitigation responsibilities from the TIA Approval Memorandum have been 
satisfied in full by SP-208-0603C. 

PROPOSED SITE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS 

There are currently two (2) proposed SDP applications for development within the zoning boundaries. SP-2019-
0575C and SP-2019-0576C.  The TIA Determination Worksheets for both developments has been included as 
Exhibit 5 to this letter, and reflect warehouse land uses for each development.  Table 4 below provides a summary 
of the land uses and densities with associated trip generation for each of the proposed developments. 
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Table 4 – Summary of Unadjusted Trip Generation (Proposed Developments) 

ITE 
Code Land Use Size 

24-Hour 
Daily 

Volume 

AM Peak 
Hour 

PM Peak 
Hour 

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total 
Tuscany Park Tract 3 (SP-2019-0575C) 

150 Warehousing  70,200 s.f. 156 9 3 12 4 10 13 

150 Warehousing  202,248 s.f. 365 26 8 34 10 28 38 

Sub-Total Tuscany Park Tract 3 522 36 11 46 14 38 52 

Tuscany Park Tract 4 (SP-2019-0576C) 

150 Warehousing  101,200 s.f. 205 13 4 17 5 14 19 

Sub-Total Tuscany Park Tract 4 205 13 4 17 5 14 19 

Total Overall Proposed 727 49 15 64 19 52 71 
 
Upon comparting the trip generations from what was originally approved as part of the TIA that was completed 
for the zoning case, what has been previously approved as part of case SP-2018-0603C, and is currently being 
proposed, it can be seen that there are trips available and remaining after all three developments have been 
constructed.  Table 5 provides a summary of the net remaining trips.  

Table 5 – Net Reaming Trips 

Condition 

24-Hour 
Daily 

Volume 

AM Peak 
Hour 

PM Peak 
Hour 

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total 
Originally Approved 5,874 702 145 847 181 642 823 

Previously Approved 586 62 11 74 10 49 59 

Current Proposed 727 49 15 64 19 52 71 

Net Remaining Trips 4,561 591 119 709 152 541 693 
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SUMMARY 

The development assumptions of the originally approved TIA are found to still be valid as the land uses and 
densities that have been previously approved and currently proposed do not vary nor exceed what was originally 
contemplated. Moreover, based on the trip generations, there are remaining trips available for additional 
development within the zoning boundary at some time in the future. Lastly, the mitigation measures identified 
within the originally approved TIA have been satisfied and proof of payment has been provided as Exhibit 4. If 
you have any questions or if you need any additional information upon your review of this Traffic Summary 
Letter, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 
Regards, 
 
BOE Consulting Services, LLC 

Bobak J. Tehrany, P.E. 
President 
Phone: 512.632.7509 
bobak@bo-engineering.com 

Attachment: Tuscany Tracts 3 & 4 
 
1. Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map 
2. TIA Approval Memo 
3. TIA Determination and Site (SP-2018-0603C) 
4. TIA Fee Invoice and Receipt (SP-2018-0603C) 
5. Proposed TIA Determination Worksheets (Tuscany Tract Developments) 
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A.1 ZONIING ORDIANANCE AND 
ZONING MAP 
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A.2 TIA APPROVAL MEMORANDUM 
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A.3 TIA DETERMINATION AND SITE PLAN 
(SP-2018-0603C)  

  





bobak
Polygon



TUSCANY PARK TRACTS 3 & 4 
TRAFFIC SUMMARY LETTER 

  06/11/2019 

A.4 MITIGATION INVOICE AND RECEIPT 
(SP-2018-0603C)  
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A.5 TUSCANY PARK TRACT 3 & 4 
TIA DETERMINATION WORKSHEETS  
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